C ommit tee Ag en da

Area Planning Sub-Committee East
Wednesday, 30th October, 2019
You are invited to attend the next meeting of Area Planning Sub-Committee East, which
will be held at:

Council Chamber, Civic Offices, High Street, Epping
on Wednesday, 30th October, 2019
at 7.30 pm .
Georgina Blakemore
Chief Executive
Democratic Services
Officer

Democratic Services Tel: (01992) 564243
Email: democraticservices@eppingforestdc.gov.uk

Members:
Councillors P Keska (Chairman), B Rolfe (Vice-Chairman), N Bedford, P Bolton, H Brady,
L Burrows, I Hadley, S Jones, C McCredie, M McEwen, J McIvor, R Morgan, J Philip,
P Stalker, B Vaz, C Whitbread, H Whitbread, J H Whitehouse and J M Whitehouse

WEBCASTING/FILMING NOTICE
Please note: this meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the
Council's internet site - at the start of the meeting the Chairman will confirm if all or
part of the meeting is being filmed. The meeting may also be otherwise filmed by
third parties with the Chairman’s permission.
You should be aware that the Council is a Data Controller under the Data Protection
Act. Data collected during this webcast will be retained in accordance with the
Council’s published policy.
Therefore by entering the Chamber and using the lower public seating area, you are
consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound
recordings for web casting and/or training purposes. If members of the public do not
wish to have their image captured they should sit in the upper council chamber
public gallery area or otherwise indicate to the Chairman before the start of the
meeting.
If you have any queries regarding this,
Communications Manager on 01992 564039.

1

please

contact

the

Corporate

Area Planning Sub-Committee East
1.

Wednesday, 30 October 2019

WEBCASTING INTRODUCTION
1.
This meeting is to be webcast. Members are reminded of the need to activate
their microphones before speaking.
2.

The Chairman will read the following announcement:

“I would like to remind everyone present that this meeting will be broadcast live to the
internet (or filmed) and will be capable of repeated viewing (or another use by such
third parties).
If you are seated in the lower public seating area it is likely that the recording cameras
will capture your image and this will result in the possibility that your image will
become part of the broadcast.
This may infringe your human and data protection rights and if you wish to avoid this
you should move to the upper public gallery.”
2.

ADVICE TO PUBLIC AND SPEAKERS ATTENDING THE COUNCIL PLANNING
SUB-COMMITTEES (Pages 5 - 8)
General advice to people attending the meeting is attached.

3.

MINUTES (Pages 9 - 16)
To confirm the minutes of the last meeting of the Sub-Committee held on 2 October
2019.

4.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

5.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
To declare interests in any item on this agenda.

6.

ANY OTHER BUSINESS
Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local Government Act 1972, requires that the permission of
the Chairman be obtained, after prior notice to the Chief Executive, before urgent
business not specified in the agenda (including a supplementary agenda of which the
statutory period of notice has been given) may be transacted.

7.

EPPING FOREST DISTRICT LOCAL PLAN SUBMISSION VERSION - PLANNING
POLICY BRIEFING NOTE
A Planning Policy Briefing Note (March 2018) has been produced by the Planning
Policy Team to ensure that a consistent approach is taken to the provision of planning
policy advice for the District, particularly in relation to the Epping Forest District Local
Plan Submission Version, which was published on 18 December 2017.
The primary purpose of the Planning Policy Briefing Note is to inform the development
management process and to provide assistance for Development Management
Officers, Councillors, applicants and planning agents. The Planning Policy Briefing
Note is available at:
http://www.efdclocalplan.org/wp-content/uploads/2018/03/Planning-Policy-Briefing2

Area Planning Sub-Committee East

Wednesday, 30 October 2019

Note_Mar-2018.pdf
8.

SITE VISITS
To identify and agree requirements for formal site visits to be held with regard to any
planning application listed in this agenda, prior to consideration of the application.

9.

PLANNING APPLICATION - EPF/0921/19 - 1-7 MARGARET ROAD, EPPING,
ESSEX, CM16 5BP (Pages 17 - 24)
To consider the attached report.

10.

PLANNING APPLICATION - EPF/0922/19 - LAND ADJACENT TO 7 MARGARET
ROAD, EPPING, ESSEX, CM16 5BP (Pages 25 - 32)
To consider the attached report.

11.

PLANNING APPLICATION - EPF/1703/19 ABRIDGE VILLAGE HALL, 39 ONGAR
ROAD, ABRIDGE, LAMBOURNE, ESSEX, RM4 1UU (Pages 33 - 40)
To consider the attached report.

12.

PLANNING APPLICATION - EPF/0803/19 - FOSTER STREET FARM, FOSTER
STREET, HASTINGWOOD, CM17 9HS (Pages 41 - 58)
To consider the attached report.

13.

EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS
Exclusion: To consider whether, under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government
Act 1972, the public and press should be excluded from the meeting for the items of
business set out below on grounds that they will involve the likely disclosure of exempt
information as defined in the following paragraph(s) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the
Act (as amended) or are confidential under Section 100(A)(2):
Agenda Item No

Subject

Nil

Nil

Exempt
Information
Paragraph Number
Nil

The Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006, which came
into effect on 1 March 2006, requires the Council to consider whether maintaining the
exemption listed above outweighs the potential public interest in disclosing the
information. Any member who considers that this test should be applied to any
currently exempted matter on this agenda should contact the proper officer at least 24
hours prior to the meeting.
Background Papers: Article 17 - Access to Information, Procedure Rules of the
Constitution define background papers as being documents relating to the subject
matter of the report which in the Proper Officer's opinion:
(a)

disclose any facts or matters on which the report or an important part of the
report is based; and

(b)

have been relied on to a material extent in preparing the report and does not
include published works or those which disclose exempt or confidential
3

Area Planning Sub-Committee East

Wednesday, 30 October 2019

information and in respect of executive reports, the advice of any political
advisor.
The Council will make available for public inspection for four years after the date of the
meeting one copy of each of the documents on the list of background papers.

4

Agenda Item 2
Advice to Public and Speakers at the Council’s District Development Management
Committee and Area Plans Sub-Committees
Are the meetings open to the public?
Yes all our meetings are open for you to attend. Only in special circumstances are the public
excluded.
When and where is the meeting?
Details of the location, date and time of the meeting are shown at the top of the front page of
the agenda along with the details of the contact officer and Members of the Committee.
Can I speak?
If you wish to speak you must register with Democratic Services by 4.00 p.m. on the
day before the meeting, by telephoning the number shown on the front page of the agenda.
Speaking to a Planning Officer will not register you to speak; you must register with
Democratic Service. Speakers are not permitted on Planning Enforcement or legal issues.
Who can speak?
Three classes of speakers are generally allowed: One objector (maybe on behalf of a
group), the local Parish or Town Council and the applicant or his/her agent. In some cases, a
representative of another authority consulted on the application may also be allowed to
speak.
What can I say?
You will be allowed to have your say about the application but you must bear in mind that
you are limited to three minutes. At the discretion of the Chairman, speakers may clarify
matters relating to their presentation and answer questions from Committee members.
If you are not present by the time your item is considered, the Committee will determine the
application in your absence.
If you have registered to speak on a planning application to be considered by the District
Development Management Committee, Area Plans Sub-Committee East, Area Plans SubCommittee West or Area Plans Sub-Committee South you will address the Committee from
within the Council Chamber at the Civic Offices. If you simply wish to attend a meeting of
any of these Committees to observe the proceedings, you will be seated in the public gallery
of the Council Chamber.
Can I give the Councillors more information about my application or my objection?
Yes you can but it must not be presented at the meeting. If you wish to send further
information to Councillors, their contact details can be obtained from Democratic Services or
our website www.eppingforestdc.gov.uk. Any information sent to Councillors should be
copied to the Planning Officer dealing with the application.
How are the applications considered?
The Committee will consider applications in the agenda order. On each case they will listen
to an outline of the application by the Planning Officer. They will then hear any speakers’
presentations.

Page 5

Revised ST (August 2017)

The order of speaking will be (1) Objector, (2) Parish/Town Council, then (3) Applicant or
his/her agent. The Committee will then debate the application and vote on either the
recommendations of officers in the agenda or a proposal made by the Committee. Should
the Committee propose to follow a course of action different to officer recommendation, it is
required to give its reasons for doing so.
An Area Plans Sub-Committee is required to refer applications to the District Development
Management Committee where:
(a)

the Sub-Committee’s proposed decision is a substantial departure from:
(i)
(ii)
(iii)

the Council's approved policy framework; or
the development or other approved plan for the area; or
it would be required to be referred to the Secretary of State for approval as
required by current government circular or directive;

(b)

the refusal of consent may involve the payment of compensation; or

(c)

the District Development Management Committee have previously considered the
application or type of development and has so requested; or

(d)

the Sub-Committee wish, for any reason, to refer the application to the District
Development Management Committee for decision by resolution.

Further Information
Further information can be obtained from Democratic Services or through our leaflet ‘Your
Choice, Your Voice’.

Page 6

Revised ST (August 2017)

Area Planning Subcommittee East 2019-20
Members of the Committee and Wards Represented:

Chairman
Cllr Keska
Chipping Ongar,
Greensted and
Marden Ash

Cllr Burrows
Epping
Lindsey and
Thornwood
Common

ViceChairman
Cllr Rolfe
Lambourne

Cllr Hadley
Moreton and
Fyfield

Cllr Bedford
Shelley

Cllr Bolton
North Weald
Bassett

Cllr Jones
Theydon Bois

Cllr
McCredie
Epping
Hemnall

Cllr McEwen
High Ongar
Willingale and
the Rodings

Cllr Morgan
Hastingwood,
Matching and
Sheering
Village

Cllr Philip
Theydon Bois

Cllr Stalker
Lower Sheering

Cllr C
Whitbread
Epping
Lindsey and
Thornwood

Cllr H
Whitbread
Epping Lindsey
and Thornwood
Common

Cllr J H
Whitehouse
Epping Hemnall

Cllr J M
Whitehouse
Epping
Hemnall

Common

Page 7

Cllr Brady
Passingford

Cllr McIvor
North Weald
Bassett

Cllr Vaz
Chipping Ongar,
Greensted and
Marden Ash

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 3
EPPING FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL
COMMITTEE MINUTES
Committee:

Area
East

Place:

Council Chamber - Civic Offices

Members
Present:

P Keska (Chairman), B Rolfe (Vice-Chairman), N Bedford, P Bolton, H Brady,
L Burrows, I Hadley, S Jones, C McCredie, M McEwen, J McIvor, R Morgan,
J Philip, P Stalker, B Vaz, C Whitbread, H Whitbread, J H Whitehouse and
J M Whitehouse

Planning

Sub-Committee

Date:

2 October 2019

Time:

7.30 - 8.43 pm

Other
Councillors:

None

Apologies:

None

Officers
Present:

M Johnson (Development Management Manager), J Leither (Democratic
Services Officer) and A Rose (Marketing & Digital Content Officer)

33.

WEBCASTING INTRODUCTION
The Chairman made a short address to remind all present that the meeting would be
broadcast on the Internet, and that the Council had adopted a protocol for the
webcasting of its meetings. The Sub-Committee noted the Council’s Protocol for
Webcasting of Council and Other Meetings.

34.

WELCOME AND INTRODUCTION
The Chairman welcomed members of the public to the meeting and outlined the
procedures and arrangements adopted by the Council to enable persons to address
the Sub-Committee, in relation to the determination of applications for planning
permission. The Sub-Committee noted the advice provided for the public and
speakers in attendance at Council Planning Sub-Committee meetings.

35.

MINUTES
RESOLVED:
That the minutes of the meeting held on 4 September 2019 be taken as read
and signed by the Chairman as a correct record.

36.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
(a)
Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Conduct, Councillors B Rolfe, H Brady,
C Whitbread, H Whitbread, J Philip and J H Whitehouse declared a non-pecuniary
interest in the following items of the agenda by virtue of knowing Trustees of the
Epping Theydon Trust Limited. The Councillors had determined that they would
remain in the meeting for the consideration of the application and voting thereon:

Page 9

1

Area Planning Sub-Committee East


37.

2 October 2019

EPF/0921/19 – 1-7 Margaret Road, Epping CM16 5BP; and
EPF/0922/19 – Land adjacent to 7 Margaret Road, Epping CM16 5BP.

ANY OTHER BUSINESS
It was noted that there was no other urgent business for consideration by the SubCommittee.

38.

EPPING FOREST DISTRICT LOCAL PLAN SUBMISSION VERSION - PLANNING
POLICY BRIEFING NOTE
It was noted that the Epping Forest District Local Plan Submission Version Planning
Policy Briefing note was available at:
http://www.efdclocalplan.org/wpcontent/uploads/2018/03/Planning-Policy-BriefingNote_Mar-2018.pdf

39.

SITE VISITS
It was noted that the following formal site visits were requested by members, and
agreed by the Committee, prior to the consideration and determination of the
remaining applications.



EPF/0921/19 – 1-7 Margaret Road, Epping CM16 5BP; and
EPF/0922/19 – Land adjacent to 7 Margaret Road, Epping CM16 5BP.

After discussion members voted in favour of a site visit to look at the floodlights and
requested the site visit be after dark:


40.

EPF/1703/19 – Abridge Village Hall, 39 Ongar Road, Abridge,
Lambourne RM4 1UU.

PLANNING APPLICATION EPF/0921/19 - 1-7 MARGARET ROAD, EPPING,
ESSEX, CM16 5BP
APPLICATION No:

EPF/0921/19

SITE ADDRESS:

1-7 Margaret Road
Epping
Essex
CM16 5BP

PARISH:

Epping

WARD:

Epping Lindsey and Thornwood Common

DESCRIPTION OF
PROPOSAL:

Proposed x 2 no. new dwellings to land rear of 1-7
Margaret Road.

DECISION:

Deferred

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=622715

DEFERRED FOR SITE VISIT

Page 10

2

Area Planning Sub-Committee East

41.

2 October 2019

PLANNING APPLICATION EPF/0922/19 - LAND ADJACENT TO 7 MARGARET
ROAD
APPLICATION No:

EPF/0922/19

SITE ADDRESS:

Land adjacent to 7 Margaret Road
Epping
Essex
CM16 5BP

PARISH:

Epping

APPLICANT:

OBO Epping Theydon Trust Ltd

DESCRIPTION OF
PROPOSAL:

Proposed new dwelling to land adjacent to no.7
Margaret Road.

DECISION:

Deferred

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=622716

DEFERRED FOR SITE VISIT
42.

PLANNING APPLICATION EPF/1282/19 - 9 KENDAL AVENUE, EPPING, ESSEX,
CM16 4PW
APPLICATION No:

EPF/1282/19

SITE ADDRESS:

9 Kendal Avenue
Epping
Essex
CM16 4PW

PARISH:

Epping

WARD:

Epping Hemnall

DESCRIPTION OF
PROPOSAL:

Retrospective swimming pool enclosure building in
rear garden (As Amendment to EPF/1221/16)

DECISION:

Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=624194

CONDITIONS
1

The development hereby permitted will be maintained strictly in
accordance with the approved drawings numbers: 16007_015A;
16007_016A; Site Location Plan.
Page 11
3

Area Planning Sub-Committee East

2

43.

2 October 2019

Notwithstanding that the development has been constructed, details of
surface water disposal shall be submitted to and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be implemented in
accordance with such agreed details and maintained.

PLANNING APPLICATION EPF/1376/19 - 4A KENDAL AVENUE, EPPING,
ESSEX, CM16 4PN
APPLICATION No:

EPF/1376/19

SITE ADDRESS:

4A Kendal Avenue
Epping
Essex
CM16 4PN

PARISH:

Epping

WARD:

Epping Hemnall

DESCRIPTION OF
PROPOSAL:
RECOMMENDED
DECISION:

New build consisting of 2, 4 bedroom homes
Grant Permission with conditions (Subject to Legal
Agreement)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=624581

CONDITIONS
1

The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the
expiration of three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2

The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in
accordance with the approved drawings numbers:
292-EX-01 Existing Ground floor Plan;
292-EX-02 Existing Elevations
292-PL-01 Site and Location Plan;
292-PL-02 Proposed Ground Floor Plan
292-PL-03 Proposed First Floor Plan,
292-PL-04 Proposed Second Floor Plan
292-PL-05 Proposed Roof Plan
292-PL-06 Proposed Elevations
292-PL-07 Existing and Proposed Street Plan
Supporting Information
Abor cultural Report
Tree Protection Plan
Phase 1 Geo-Environmental Desk Study Report
CA/4AKA/01 Rev

Page 12

4

Area Planning Sub-Committee East

2 October 2019

3

No construction works above ground level shall have taken place until
documentary and photographic details of the types and colours of the
external finishes have been submitted to and approved by the Local
Planning Authority, in writing, prior to the commencement of the
development. The development shall be implemented in accordance with
such approved details.

4

The window opening(s) in the north and south first floor flank elevation(s)
shall be entirely fitted with obscured glass with a minimum Level 3
obscurity and have fixed frames to a height of 1.7 metres above the floor
of the room in which the window is installed and shall be permanently
retained in that condition.

5

Prior to first occupation of the development, measures shall be
incorporated within the development to ensure a water efficiency
standard of 110 litres (or less) per person per day.

6

Wheel washing or other cleaning facilities for vehicles leaving the site
during construction works shall be installed and utilised to clean vehicles
immediately before leaving the site. Any mud or other material deposited
on nearby roads as a result of the development shall be removed.

7

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning
(General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015, as amended,
(or any other order revoking, further amending or re-enacting that Order)
no development generally permitted by virtue of Class A and B of Part 1
Schedule 2 to the Order, shall be undertaken without the prior written
permission of the Local Planning Authority.

8

Prior to first occupation of the development hereby approved, 1 Electric
Vehicle Charging Point for each dwelling that has a garage or allocated
parking space and shall be installed and retained thereafter for use by
the occupants of the site.

9

No preliminary ground works shall take place until a flood risk
assessment and management and maintenance plan shall be submitted
to and approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to commencement
of development. The assessment shall include calculations of increased
run-off and associated volume of storm detention using WinDes or other
similar best practice tools. The approved measures shall be carried out
prior to the substantial completion of the development and shall be
adequately maintained in accordance with the management and
maintenance plan.

10

In the event that any evidence of potential contamination is found at any
time when carrying out the approved development that was not
previously identified in the Phase 2 report, work shall be suspended and
additional measures for its remediation shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the local planning authority. The remediation of
the site shall incorporate the approved additional measures and a
verification report for all the remediation works shall be submitted to the
local planning authority within 21 days of the report being completed and
approved in writing by the local planning authority.

Page 13

5

Area Planning Sub-Committee East

2 October 2019

11

No development, including works of demolition or site clearance, shall
take place until a Tree Protection Plan, Arboricultural Method Statement
and site monitoring schedule in accordance with BS:5837:2012 (Trees in
relation to design, demolition and construction - Recommendations) has
been submitted to the Local Planning Authority and approved in writing.
The development shall be carried out only in accordance with the
approved documents unless the Local Planning Authority gives its written
consent to any variation.

12

If any tree, shrub or hedge shown to be retained in the submitted
Arboricultural reports is removed, uprooted or destroyed, dies, or
becomes severely damaged or diseased during development activities or
within 3 years of the completion of the development, another tree, shrub
or hedge of the same size and species shall be planted within 3 months
at the same place, unless the Local Planning Authority gives its written
consent to any variation. If within a period of five years from the date of
planting any replacement tree, shrub or hedge is removed, uprooted or
destroyed, or dies or becomes seriously damaged or defective another
tree, shrub or hedge of the same species and size as that originally
planted shall, within 3 months, be planted at the same place.

13

Prior to any above ground works, full details of both hard and soft
landscape works (including tree planting and dividing hedgerow to the
frontage between the two houses) and implementation programme
(linked to the development schedule) shall be submitted to and approved
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These works shall be carried
out as approved and retained/maintained in perpetuity. The hard
landscaping details shall include, as appropriate, and in addition to
details of existing features to be retained (specifically the retained trees
to the frontage): proposed finished levels or contours; means of
enclosure; car parking layouts; other minor artefacts and structures,
including signs and lighting and functional services above and below
ground. The details of soft landscape works shall include plans for
planting or establishment by any means and full written specifications
and schedules of plants, including species, plant sizes and proposed
numbers /densities where appropriate. If within a period of five years
from the date of the planting or establishment of any tree, or shrub or
plant, that tree, shrub, or plant or any replacement is removed, uprooted
or destroyed or dies or becomes seriously damaged or defective another
tree or shrub, or plant of the same species and size as that originally
planted shall be planted at the same place, unless the Local Planning
Authority gives its written consent to any variation.
14

All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including
vehicle movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise
sensitive premises, shall only take place between the hours of 07.30 to
18.30 Monday to Friday and 08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at
no time during Sundays and Public/Bank Holidays unless otherwise
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Page 14

6

Area Planning Sub-Committee East
44.

2 October 2019

PLANNING APPLICATION EPF/1703/19 - ABRIDGE VILLAGE HALL, 39 ONGAR
ROAD, ABRIDGE, LAMBOURNE, ESSEX, RM4 1 UU
APPLICATION No:

EPF/1703/19

SITE ADDRESS:

Abridge Village Hall
39 Ongar Road
Abridge
Lambourne
Essex
RM4 1UU

PARISH:

Lambourne

WARD:

Lambourne

DESCRIPTION OF
PROPOSAL:

Erection of 4 floodlights for occasional evening use,
lights to be switched off by 8.30 pm

DECISION:

Deferred

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=626093

DEFERRED FOR SITE VISIT

CHAIRMAN

Page 15

7

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 16

Agenda Item 9

Epping Forest District Council
G
R
EE
N
A
C
R
ES

2

Albert Cott

10
5

32

1

Edward Cott

30
b

30
a

EFDC

93

18
1

87

2

1

B

81

30

100.6m

D
O
1

8

2

W
or
ks
7

17

22
20

10
1

20

AD
RO

2

102.1m

47

8

T
RE
GA
AR
M

in
Dra

2a

22
a
16

19

2b

1

De
po
t

13

T
RE
GA SE
AR
M CLO

ardens

LB

97.5m

12

11

14

1

22

6

37

5

TCB

24

15

El Sub Sta

2

26

25

27
8

13

33
2

4

1

A
V
EN
U
E

3

Unauthorised reproduction infringes
Crown Copyright and may lead to
prosecution or civil proceedings.
Contains Ordnance Survey Data. ©
Crown Copyright 2013 EFDC License No:
100018534

16

Application

D
EL
FI
N
CO
A
Number:
E
B

Site Name:
Scale of Plot:

Contains Royal Mail Data. © Royal Mail
Copyright & Database Right 2013

Page 17

2

AD
RO

EFDC
1

30

7

OW
AD
ME

96.0m

28

EPF/0921/19
1-7 Margaret Road Epping Essex CM16
5BP
1:1250

2

6

W
O
O
D
B
ER
R
Y

3

4

24

APPLICATION No:

EPF/0921/19

SITE ADDRESS:

1-7 Margaret Road
Epping
Essex
CM16 5BP

PARISH:

Epping

WARD:

Epping Lindsey and Thornwood Common

APPLICANT:

OBO Epping Theydon Trust Ltd

DESCRIPTION OF
PROPOSAL:

Proposed x 2 no. new dwellings to land rear of 1-7 Margaret
Road.

RECOMMENDED
DECISION:

Refuse Permission

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=622715

REASON FOR REFUSAL

1

The proposals represent overdevelopment of the site resulting in a cramped
appearance in this backland of nos. 1 to 7 Margret Road, which would be out of
keeping and character with the locality and the surrounding area, contrary to
National Planning Policy Framework 2019, Policies CP2 and DBE1 of the Adopted
Local Plan 2008 and policy DM 9 of the Local Plan Submission Version 2017.

2

The application does not provide sufficient information to satisfy the Council, as
competent authority, that the proposed development will not adversely affect the
integrity of the Epping Forest Special Area for Conservation and there are no
alternative solutions or imperative reasons of overriding public interest why the
proposed development should be permitted. As such, the proposed development is
contrary to policy CP1 (i), NC1 of the Epping Forest Local Plan (1998) and
Alterations (2006), policies DM2 and DM22 of the Epping Forest Local Plan
(Submission Version) 2017 and the requirements of the Habitats Regulations 2017.

2

The proposal would result in an unacceptable loss of amenity and be overbearing to
the occupants of neighbouring residential properties that adjoin the site, by reason of
increase activity in this former rear garden area and its position next to their short
depth rear gardens of 1-7 Margaret Road as well as unacceptably overlook towards
the rear garden of 20 Shaftesbury Road, contrary to the Natioanal Planning Policy
Framework 2019 , Policies DBE2 and DBE9 of the Adopted Local Plan 2008 and
policy DM 9 of the Local Plan Submission Version 2017.

This application is before this Committee since it has been ‘called in’ by Councillor Chris
Whitbread (Pursuant to The Constitution, Part Three: Scheme of Delegation, Appendix 3)

Site and Surroundings

Page 18

The site comprises land that form part of the rear gardens of properties 1- 7 (odd) Margaret
Road and part of the side and front garden of no.1 Margaret Road. It borders the flank side of
the rear garden of no.20 Beaconsfield Road to the east, work shops to the north-east on
Lindsey Street. This side of Margaret Road comprises a row of bungalows of which the rear
gardens will form the application site. A steep embankment rises up to the north-eastern
boundary of the site.
The site is not within a Conservation Area, not a listed building and is not within the
Metropolitan Green Belt.
Proposal
The proposal is for 2 no. semi-detached bungalows, behind and at right angles to the current
bungalows. They will be 6.2metres wide, 8metres deep and 5metres in height to the top ridge
level and 2.4metres at the eaves with a hipped roof design. Each will be 50 sq metres in
footprint. There is provision of 3 car parking spaces in the entrance in to the site fronting
Margaret Road, situated adjacent to No1 Margaret Road’s front garden.
Relevant Planning History:
EPF/0922/19 - Proposed new dwelling to land adjacent to no.7 Margaret Road. This is still to
be determined and also on this committee agenda.
(EPF/1886/13) No.8 Margaret Road. Erection of single storey affordable dwelling and ancillary
works including vehicle access and crossing. (Revised application) Granted permission with
conditions on 11/11/2013.
Development Plan Context
Local Plan (1998) and Alterations (2006).
Section 38(6) Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that planning applications
should be determined in accordance with the development plan unless material considerations
indicate otherwise. The Development Plan currently comprises the Epping Forest District
Council Adopted Local Plan (1998) and Alterations (2006).
The following policies within the current Development Plan are considered to be of relevance
to this application:
CP1
CP2
CP3
CP6
CP7
NC1
H2A
H3A
H4A
U3B
DBE1
DBE2
DBE3
DBE6
DBE8
DBE9
ST4

Achieving Sustainable Development Objectives
Protecting the Quality of the Rural and Built Environment
New Development
Achieving Sustainable Urban Development Patterns
Urban Form and Quality
SPAs, SACs and SSSIs
Previously Developed Land
Housing Density
Dwelling Mix
Sustainable Drainage Systems
Design of New Buildings
Effect on Neighbouring Properties
Design in Urban Areas
Car Parking in New Development
Private Amenity Space
Loss of Amenity
Road Safety

Page 19

ST6

Vehicle Parking

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (February 2019)
The NPPF 2019 is a material consideration in determining planning applications. The National
Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 2019 section 2, advocates the presumption in favour of
sustainable development remains at the heart of the NPPF. Paragraph 11 of the NPPF
provides that for determining planning applications this means either;
a) approving development proposals that accord with an up-to-date development plan
without delay; or
b) where there are no relevant development plan policies, or the policies which are most
important for determining the application are out-of-date, granting permission unless:
i.
the application of policies in the NPPF that protect areas or assets of particular
importance provides a clear reason for refusing the development proposed; or
ii.
any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh
the benefits, when assessed against the policies in the NPPF taken as a whole
The presumption in favour of sustainable development does not change the statutory status of
the development plan as the starting point for decision making, but policies within the
development plan need to be considered and applied in terms of their degree of consistency
with the Framework.
In addition to paragraph 11, the following paragraphs of the NPPF are considered to be of
relevance to this application:
Paragraph
Paragraph
Paragraph
Paragraph

124
127
130
131

Epping Forest District Local Plan Submission Version (LPSV) (2017)
Although the LPSV does not currently form part of the statutory development plan for the
district, on 14th December 2017 the Council resolved that the LPSV be endorsed as a material
consideration to be used in the determination of planning applications.
Paragraph 48 of the NPPF provides that decision-takers may give weight to relevant policies in
emerging plans according to:
a) The stage of preparation of the emerging plan (the more advanced the preparation,
the greater the weight that may be given);
b) The extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant policies (the less
significant the unresolved objections, the greater the weight that may be given); and
c) The degree of consistency of the relevant policies in the emerging plan to the policies
in the NPPF (the closer the policies in the emerging plan to the policies in the NPPF,
the greater the weight that may be given).
The LPSV has been submitted for Independent Examination and hearing sessions were held
on various dates from February 2019 to June 2019. The appointed Inspector has provided
advice to the Council. This advice is given without prejudice to the Inspector’s final
conclusions.
The following policies in the LPSV are considered to be of relevance to the determination of
this application, with the weight afforded by your officers in this particular case indicated:

Page 20

Policy
SP1 Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development
SP2 Spatial Development Strategy 2011-2033
H1 Housing Mix and Accommodation Types
T1 Sustainable Transport Choices
DM2 Epping Forest SAC and the Lee Valley SPA
DM9 High Quality Design
DM10 Housing Design and Quality
DM11 Waste Recycling Facilities on New Development
DM15 Managing and Reducing Flood Risk
DM16 Sustainable Drainage Systems
DM17 Protecting and Enhancing Watercourses and Flood Defences
DM18 On Site Management of Waste Water and Water Supply
DM19 Sustainable Water Use
DM21 Local Environmental Impacts, Pollution and Land Contamination.
DM22 Air Quality

Weight afforded
Significant
Some
Some
Significant
Significant
Significant
Significant
Significant
Significant
Significant
Significant
Significant
Significant
Significant
Significant

Summary of Representations
Number of neighbours Consulted: 14. 6 Objection responses received and summarised below.
Site notice posted: Not Required
Neighbouring occupiers in 3 and 16 MARGARET ROAD,16 and 20 SHAFTESBURY ROAD
and 73-75 LINDSEY SREET
– Objections – Summarised as:














Design and Siting,
Harmful Impact on the area
Impact on the residential Amenity, Landscaping
Impact on Local Parking situation
The proposed bungalows would be very imposing and prominently overlook the
adjoining gardens at the rear Shaftesbury Road (14-20).
Poor design, unsympathetic to the existing semi-detached houses, especially in terms
of its location along the mutual boundary, the overall sheer scale, proportions and
orientation of the dwellings.
Would have a harmful impact on the row of semi-detached houses to the rear of
Shaftesbury Road and the current occupiers of 1-7 Margaret Road.
The location, physical presence of the proposed bungalows would be extremely
overbearing, the proposed development would have a significant effect on the
residential amenity in respect of overshadowing and domination.
Unacceptable sense of enclosure, especially given the shape and size of
No.20 Shaftesbury Road rear garden and the orientation of the proposed dwellings
Although the properties along Margaret Road are bungalows; the pattern of the
proposed dwellings will not fit in with the scale of surrounding properties as the
proposed
dwellings would directly face the rear of the semi-detached houses on Shaftesbury
Road, importantly 20 Shaftesbury Road being a 3 storey house.
Access to the rear of Margaret Road would be extremely limited.
The form, size and character of the proposed adjoining development is on an
unacceptable sized plot as there is insufficient space between old and new buildings to
maintain the amenity and privacy of adjoining houses.

Page 21











Overlooking & Loss of Privacy( front windows and door on the proposed plan will
face no.20 Shaftesbury Road property rear elevation and rear garden where they
have 4 high occupancy habitable rooms windows)
The close proximity of the bungalows to common western side common boundary with
no.20 Shaftesbury Road will cause a serious invasion of loss of privacy and amenity.
No set back from the 45 degree angle with the rear windows at 20 Shaftesbury Road.
Proposed dwelling from the left elevation would be 6m from common side rear
boundary and on the right elevation just 3m from the rear garden.
Loss of daylight & Sunlight
Overdevelopment - another additional dwelling on the land adjacent to no 7 Margaret
Road, allows very little space for landscaping and we believe that it would lead to gross
over-development of the site. The proposed dwellings would significantly alter the fabric
of the area and amount to serious ‘cramming’ in.
Highway safety; and
Noise and nuisance.

EPPING TOWN COUNCIL – OBJECT to this application for the following reasons:
 The provision of two bungalows in this location would result in a loss of amenity for the
immediate neighbours in terms of overlooking, loss of privacy, loss of light and general
proximity to their boundary. It would constitute a cramped form of development as the two
properties will result in a loss of amenity for existing properties due to reduced garden sizes.
Committee also note the vast loss of greenery which has previously acted as a sound buffer.


Committee were concerned about the loss of parking, resulting from proposed dropped kerbs, in
an area with severe parking issues. This would have a knock on effect of reducing the parking
provision for the area as a whole.



Committee are extremely supportive of this type of housing and would request the applicant
rethinks the layout of the proposal to respect neighbour concerns.



Relevant policies: CP2, CP3, CP6, CP7, DBE1, DBE2, DBE9, H3A; ST4, ST6.
Emerging Local Plan: H1A (ii) & (iii), DM9J, DM9A, DM10.



NPPF: Para 9, 17, 53, 56, 64



Epping Town Council confirm they will attend and speak at Plans East to object to this proposal.









Neighbour’s objection for the following reasons:
Both submitted plans have been design based on erroneous boundary lines. Both
proposals infringe the boundary with nos. 73- 75 Lindsey Street by a considerable
margin. This infringement is a matter that will have to be resolved through the Courts.
Due to the topographical layout of the land abutting and below nos 73 – 75 Lindsey
Street the proposed property will inevitably be subject to drainage problems.
The potential drainage problem has been exacerbated by the illegal removal of the
trees protected under the constraints of TPO ENF/16/95/T1 This includes 1 Oak tree
and 2 Ash
The two applications stated that there are no trees on the site. This is incorrect because
they illegally cut down the trees on the site.
The construction of the properties has the potential to affect negatively the ability of the
tenants of 73 – 75 Lindsey Street in conducting his business.
EDFC has commented that nos 73 – 75 Lindsey Street is a property that the Council is
interested in developing Therefore the construction of Social Dwellings this close to the
Lindsey Street property will certainly inhibit the ability to develop the site.
No consideration appears to have been given to the historical nature of the proposed
site which will almost certainly be environmentally contaminated

Page 22



The boundaries of the proposed dwelling houses are not correct, they infringe on the
Lindsey Street property and the sighting and subsequent logistics (access etc) of the
dwelling does not make any sense and the veracity of Theydon Trusts has to be
questioned in light of their illegal actions in clearing the Trees and subsequent
semantics in justifying the construction of the dwellings.

Planning Considerations
The main issues for consideration in this case are:
a)
b)
c)
d)
e)

The principle of residential development;
Highway safety and parking provision;
Design;
The impact to the living conditions of neighbours;
The impact on the Epping Forest Special Area of Conservation.

Principle
The proposal is to build a pair of bungalows in the rear gardens of 4 existing properties. The
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) does not define gardens in built up areas as
previously developed land. However, the proposal needs to be considered on its own planning
merits and conformity to the Adopted and Submission Version Local Plan.
This is clearly a back land development as the site forms part of the rear gardens of nos 1 – 7
Margaret Road and has no direct road frontage. It is considered that the proposed
development of 2 new dwellings in this location would result in a cramped overdevelopment on
this site. The rear of proposed no.11 in particular, would have a small, irregular rear garden,
with at least half of it banked, leaving only a small useable area for useable amenity space. It
would therefore be out of keeping and harm the character of the locality, contrary to policies
DBE1 and DBE2 of the Adopted Local Plan and policy DM 9 of the Local Plan Submission
Version 2017.
Highway Safety and Parking Provision:
There is space to park two to three cars on the drive fronting Margaret Road and with
suggested suitable conditions from the ECC Highways officer relating to the vehicular access
point, there will be no detrimental impact on highway safety.
Design
The design of the bungalows reflects the design of other bungalows along Margaret Road
residential properties in the locality and will incorporate sustainable sources of energy and
materials.
Living Conditions of Neighbours:
The siting of the two bungalows will be too close to the rear gardens of the adjacent properties,
particularly as proposed no.9 will be just beyond the end of the short rear gardens of existing
nos. 3 and 5 Margaret Road, such that they will appear obtrusive and overbearing to the
detriment of these occupiers outlook.
The proposals are also very close to the rear gardens of nos. 1 and 7 Margaret Road and
again, because these neighbours will have retained short rear gardens, the introduction of two
residential properties with front and rear gardens located so close, would result in

Page 23

unacceptable loss of privacy through increased activity associated with higher levels of use
and activity.
The front of the proposed two bungalows and pedestrian access will be all the way along the
side of 20 Beaconsfield Road. Again, because of the close proximity to this neighbour, there
will be unacceptable loss of amenity from greater activity associated with the use of the
proposed two bungalows and potential loss of privacy through overlooking. It would therefore
be contrary to policy DBE2 and DBE9 of the Adopted Local Plan and policy DM 9 of the Local
Plan Submission Version 2017.
Impact on the Epping Forest SAC
The proposal results in an additional dwelling within the District, the submitted documents do
not make provision for improvements to access to Epping Forest or to air quality and therefore
on this basis the application is contrary to policy CP1 (i) and NC1 of the Adopted Local Plan
and Policy DM2 and DM33 of the Submission version.
The application does not provide sufficient information to satisfy the Council, as competent
authority, that the proposed development will not adversely affect the integrity of the Epping
Forest Special Area of Conservation and there are no alternative solutions or imperative
reasons of overriding public interest why the proposed development should be permitted. As
such the proposed development is contrary to Policy CP1 and CP6 of the Epping Forest Local
Plan, Policies DM2 and DM22 of the Epping Forest District Local Plan Submission Version
2017 and the requirements of the Habitats Regulations 2017.
In the absence of a completed Section 106 planning obligation the development has failed to
mitigate against the adverse impact it has and will have on the Epping Forest Special Area for
Conservation in terms of air pollution. Failure to have secured such mitigation is contrary to
Policies CP1 CP6 of the Epping Forest Local Plan (1998) and Alterations (2006), Policies DM 2
and DM 22 of the Epping Forest District Local Plan Submission Version (2017) and the
requirements of the Habitats Regulations 2017.
Conclusions
The proposed bungalows, by reason of its inappropriateness in its siting, proximity to the
existing rear gardens of the neighbouring properties, would result in a material harm to the
living conditions of the neighbouring occupiers of the adjacent properties and would result in an
inappropriate cramped overdevelopment development in this back land site contrary to the
NPPF 2019 and relevant policies in the Adopted Epping District Council Local Plan and
Alterations (2006).
For the reasons set out above, it is recommended that planning permission be refused.
Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest:
Planning Application Case Officer: Francis Saayeng
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564161
or if no direct contact can be made please email:
contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk

Page 24

Agenda Item 10

Epping Forest District Council
100.6m

EFDC
8

7

17

19

16

T
RE
GA SE
AR
M CLO

De
po
t

13

6

1

8

T
RE
GA
AR
M
AD
RO

2

20

EFDC
97.5m

22
Unauthorised reproduction infringes
Crown Copyright and may lead to
prosecution or civil proceedings.

24

Contains Ordnance Survey Data. ©
Crown Copyright 2013 EFDC License No:
100018534

Application Number:

EPF/0922/19

Site Name:

Land adjacent to 7 Margaret Road
Epping Essex CM16 5BP
1:500

Scale of Plot:

Contains Royal Mail Data. © Royal Mail
Copyright & Database Right 2013

Page 25

14

APPLICATION No:

EPF/0922/19

SITE ADDRESS:

Land adjacent to 7 Margaret Road
Epping
Essex
CM16 5BP

PARISH:

Epping

WARD:

Epping Lindsey and Thornwood Common

APPLICANT:

OBO Epping Theydon Trust Ltd

DESCRIPTION OF
PROPOSAL:
RECOMMENDED
DECISION:

Proposed new dwelling to land adjacent to no.7 Margaret Road.
Refuse Permission

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=622716

REASON FOR REFUSAL
1

The proposals will result in a cramped form of development, out of keeping with the
adjacent residential properties and detrimental to the street scene in this locality,
contrary to NPPF 2019 , Policies CP3, DBE1 and DBE2 of the adopted Local Plan
2008 and DM 9 of the Local Plan Submitted Version 2017.

2

The proposal by reason of its size and siting would be visually overbearing and also
result in an unacceptable loss of light which would be detrimental to the occupants
of 16 Margaret Close, contrary to policies DBE2 and DBE9 of the Adopted Local
Plan and policy DM 9 of the Local Plan Submission Version 2017.

3

The application does not provide sufficient information to satisfy the Council, as
competent authority, that the proposed development will not adversely affect the
integrity of the Epping Forest Special Area for Conservation and there are no
alternative solutions or imperative reasons of overriding public interest why the
proposed development should be permitted. As such, the proposed development is
contrary to policy CP1 (i), NC1 of the Epping Forest Local Plan (1998) and
Alterations (2006), policies DM2 and DM22 of the Epping Forest Local Plan
(Submission Version) 2017 and the requirements of the Habitats Regulations 2017.

This application is before this Committee since it has been ‘called in’ by Councillor Chris
Whitbread (Pursuant to The Constitution, Part Three: Scheme of Delegation, Appendix 3)
Site and Surroundings
The site is roughly rectangular shaped and covers an area of approximately 0.07 hectares. The
site was the former side garden of no.7, the house and garden of which is to the immediate
southwest. Immediately north-west of the application site, is no.16 Margaret Close, which
slopes up from the front to the rear and there is a different level between 16 Margaret Close
and the proposal site. A timber fence is present at both side common boundaries and at the
end of the plot, to the north east is a car repair garage. The site is not within a Conservation
Area, not a listed building and is not within the Metropolitan Green Belt.

Page 26

Proposal
The proposal is for a single storey new dwelling to land between no.7 Margaret Road and no.
16 Margaret Close. The proposed dwelling with external footprint, measures 10 metres deep,
4.65metres wide and 5.3metres in height with a pitched hipped roof finish.
The plans show parking for a single car in the front garden.
Relevant Planning History:
No relevant existing Planning History on this site. However, there is a current application
submission EPF/0921/19 - Proposed x 2 no. new dwellings to land rear of 1-7 Margaret Road,
elsewhere on this agenda.
Development Plan Context
Local Plan (1998) and Alterations (2006:
Section 38(6) Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that planning applications
should be determined in accordance with the development plan unless material considerations
indicate otherwise. The Development Plan currently comprises the Epping Forest District
Council Adopted Local Plan (1998) and Alterations (2006).
The following policies within the current Development Plan are of relevance to this application:
CP1
CP2
CP3
CP6
CP7
NC1
H2A
H3A
H4A
U3B
DBE1
DBE2
DBE3
DBE6
DBE8
DBE9
ST4
ST6

Achieving Sustainable Development Objectives
Protecting the Quality of the Rural and Built Environment
New Development
Achieving Sustainable Urban Development Patterns
Urban Form and Quality
SPAs, SACs and SSSIs
Previously Developed Land
Housing Density
Dwelling Mix
Sustainable Drainage Systems
Design of New Buildings
Effect on Neighbouring Properties
Design in Urban Areas
Car Parking in New Development
Private Amenity Space
Loss of Amenity
Road Safety
Vehicle Parking

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (February 2019).
The NPPF 2019 is a material consideration in determining planning applications. The National
Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)2019 section 2, advocates the presumption in favour of
sustainable development remains at the heart of the NPPF. Paragraph 11 of the NPPF
provides that for determining planning applications this means either;
a) approving development proposals that accord with an up-to-date development plan
without delay; or
b) where there are no relevant development plan policies, or the policies which are most
important for determining the application are out-of-date, granting permission unless:
i.
the application of policies in the NPPF that protect areas or assets of particular

Page 27

ii.

importance provides a clear reason for refusing the development proposed; or
any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh
the benefits, when assessed against the policies in the NPPF taken as a whole

The presumption in favour of sustainable development does not change the statutory status of
the development plan as the starting point for decision making, but policies within the
development plan need to be considered and applied in terms of their degree of consistency
with the Framework.
In addition to paragraph 11, the following paragraphs of the NPPF are considered to be of
relevance to this application:
Paragraph
Paragraph
Paragraph
Paragraph

124
127
130
131

Epping Forest District Local Plan Submission Version (LPSV) (2017)
Although the LPSV does not currently form part of the statutory development plan for the
district, on 14th December 2017 the Council resolved that the LPSV be endorsed as a material
consideration to be used in the determination of planning applications.
Paragraph 48 of the NPPF provides that decision-takers may give weight to relevant policies in
emerging plans according to:
a) The stage of preparation of the emerging plan (the more advanced the preparation,
the greater the weight that may be given);
b) The extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant policies (the less
significant the unresolved objections, the greater the weight that may be given); and
c) The degree of consistency of the relevant policies in the emerging plan to the
policies in the NPPF (the closer the policies in the emerging plan to the policies in
the NPPF, the greater the weight that may be given).
The LPSV has been submitted for Independent Examination and hearing sessions were held
on various dates from February 2019 to June 2019. The appointed Inspector has provided
advice to the Council. This advice is given without prejudice to the Inspector’s final
conclusions.
The following policies in the LPSV are considered to be of relevance to the determination of
this application, with the weight afforded by your officers in this particular case indicated:
Policy
SP1 Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development
SP2 Spatial Development Strategy 2011-2033
H1 Housing Mix and Accommodation Types
T1 Sustainable Transport Choices
DM2 Epping Forest SAC and the Lee Valley SPA
DM9 High Quality Design
DM10 Housing Design and Quality
DM11 Waste Recycling Facilities on New Development
DM15 Managing and Reducing Flood Risk
DM16 Sustainable Drainage Systems
DM17 Protecting and Enhancing Watercourses and Flood Defences

Page 28

Weight afforded
Significant
Some
Some
Significant
Significant
Significant
Significant
Significant
Significant
Significant
Significant

DM18 On Site Management of Waste Water and Water Supply
DM19 Sustainable Water Use
DM21 Local Environmental Impacts, Pollution and Land Contamination.
DM22 Air Quality

Significant
Significant
Significant
Significant

Summary of Representations
Number of neighbours Consulted: 14. Four Objection response received
Site notice posted: Not Required
Objections from the following: PARIS HALL, HASTINGWOOD, 73 LINDSEY STREET,
EPPING, 16 MARGARET CLOSE, EPPING, summarised as follows:




















Harmful Impact on the area
Harmful impact on Local Parking situation
The proposed bungalow would be very imposing and prominently overlook the
adjoining rear gardens of No 7 Margaret and 16 Margaret Close.
Poor design, unsympathetic to the existing bungalows, especially in terms of its location
along the common boundaries, the overall sheer scale, proportions and orientation of
the dwelling.
Would have a harmful impact on number 7 Margaret Road and 16 Margaret Close.
The location, physical presence of the proposed bungalow would be extremely
overbearing, the proposed development would have a significant effect on the
residential amenity in respect of overshadowing and domination.
Although the properties along Margaret Road are bungalows; the pattern of the
proposed dwelling will not fit in with the scale of surrounding properties as the proposed
dwelling would directly face the rear of no.16 Margaret Close and deeper than the rear
garden of no. 7 Margaret Road
Access to the rear of Margaret Road would be extremely limited.
The form, size and character of the proposed adjoining development is on an
unacceptable sized plot as there is insufficient space between old and new buildings to
maintain the amenity and privacy of adjoining houses.
Overlooking & Loss of Privacy (side bedroom window on the proposed plan will face
no.16 Margaret Close side and rear garden.
The proximity of the bungalow to common southern and northern side common
boundaries with no. 7 Margaret Road and 16 Margaret Close
Proposed dwelling from the left elevation would be only 0.02m – 0.8metres set back
from common side /rear boundary and attached to no.7 Margaret Road.
Overdevelopment - another additional dwelling on the land adjacent to no 7 Margaret
Road and 16 Margaret Close, allows very little space for landscaping and we believe
that it would lead to gross over-development of the site. The proposed dwellings would
significantly alter the fabric of the area and amount to serious ‘cramming’ in.
Erroneous boundary lines
Topography creates drainage issues, exacerbated by the removal of trees
Highway safety; and
Noise and nuisance.

EPPING TOWN COUNCIL – OBJECT to this Application on the 9 July 2019 for the following
reasons:
If the application is approved, the provision of an additional bungalow would exacerbate the
issues detailed in EPF/0922/19. Committee are extremely supportive of this type of housing
and would request the applicant rethinks the layout of the proposal to respect neighbour

Page 29

concerns. Epping Town Council confirm they will attend and speak at Plans East to object to
this proposal.

Planning Considerations
The main issues for consideration in this case are:
a)
b)
c)
d)
e)
f)
g)

The principle of residential development;
Sitting and Location
Highway safety and parking provision;
The impact on the character and appearance of the locality;
The impact to the living conditions of neighbours;
Residential amenity for future occupiers;
The impact on the Epping Forest Special Area of Conservation.

Principle
The proposal is for a residential development on a site in a residential built up area. It is part of
the side garden area of no.7 Margaret Road. The character of the immediate area is one of
bungalows and in terms of its design and height alone, the proposal will not be out of keeping.
However, this would be at the end of a run of 4 bungalows of the same appearance, whereas
the proposal will be noticeably narrower at a width of 4.5m, compared with the 7 metres of
each of the bungalows at nos. 1 – 7 (odd). It will also be built virtually up to the flank boundary
of the site to no. 16 Margaret Close, such that it will appear too cramped in the street scene. It
will therefore be contrary to policies DBE1 and 2 of the Adopted Local Plan 2008 and DM 9 of
the Local Plan Submission Version 2017.
Highway Safety and Parking Provision
There is sufficient space to park 2 cars on the drive and the ECC highways officer has
recommended conditions relating to the vehicular access point, to ensure that there is no
detrimental impact to highway safety.
Impact on the Living Conditions of Neighbours:
The main impact of the proposal will be on 16 Margaret Close located immediately north of the
application site. Whereas that neighbouring bungalow is set off the shared side boundary of
the site, the proposal will be deep, 10m in length, which is 3m deeper than the current
bungalow (7 Margaret Road) to which it will physically be joined. Whereas this is no too
unreasonable an impact on no. 7, it will be quite extensive along the side boundary to 16
Margaret Close, causing them to suffer some loss of light and have an overbearing impact on
their property in amenity terms. It therefore would be contrary to policies DBE2, DBE9 of the
Adopted Local Plan and policy DM 9 of the Local Plan Submission Version.
Residential Amenity of Future Occupiers
The proposal would have sufficient internal living space, and amenity space for future
occupiers, in accordance with emerging policy DM10 of the LPSV 2017.
Impact on the Epping Forest SAC
The proposal results in an additional dwelling within the District, the submitted documents do
not make provision for improvements to access to Epping Forest or to air quality and therefore
on this basis the application is contrary to policy CP1 (i) and NC1 of the Adopted Local Plan
and Policy DM2 and DM33 of the Submission version.

Page 30

The application does not provide sufficient information to satisfy the Council, as competent
authority, that the proposed development will not adversely affect the integrity of the Epping
Forest Special Area of Conservation and there are no alternative solutions or imperative
reasons of overriding public interest why the proposed development should be permitted. As
such the proposed development is contrary to Policy CP1 and CP6 of the Epping Forest Local
Plan, Policies DM2 and DM22 of the Epping Forest District Local Plan Submission Version
2017 and the requirements of the Habitats Regulations 2017.
In the absence of a completed Section 106 planning obligation the development has failed to
mitigate against the adverse impact it has and will have on the Epping Forest Special Area for
Conservation in terms of air pollution. Failure to have secured such mitigation is contrary to
Policies CP1 CP6 of the Epping Forest Local Plan (1998) and Alterations (2006), Policies DM 2
and DM 22 of the Epping Forest District Local Plan Submission Version (2017) and the
requirements of the Habitats Regulations 2017.
Conclusions
The proposed bungalow, by reason of its siting up to the side site boundary and narrow
frontage compared with the rest of the uniform sized bungalows in this terrace, would be
harmful to the character and appearance of the street scene. Furthermore, because of its
length from front to rear and position close to the side boundary, it will be harmful to the
amenities of the occupants of 16 Margaret Close. It will therefore be contrary to contrary to the
NPPF 2019 and relevant policies in the Adopted Epping District Council Local Plan and
Alterations (2006).
For the reasons set out above, it is recommended that planning permission be refused.

Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest:
Planning Application Case Officer: Francis Saayeng
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564161
or if no direct contact can be made please email:
contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk

Page 31

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 11

Epping Forest District Council

Dairy Farm Cottage

ain
Dr

(u
m
)

EFDC

Pa
th

R
C

Blo
od
yM
ea
d

Riv
er
Ro
din
g

Dra
in

ard Bdy
t, ED & W
Co Cons

Pa
th (
um
)

52

61

Def
4

Blackboarded
Cottages

55

Playing F ield
46

Weir

Wind Pump
(disused)
FB

Hall

Dr
ai

n
44

37

Surgery

A

11
3

Abridge
Play Area

38

EFDC

36

22

18

19

20

12

25

27
28

29

99

EPF/1703/19

Site Name:

Abridge Village Hall 39 Ongar Road
Abridge Lambourne
Essex RM4 1UU
1:2500

5

Scale of Plot:

Contains Royal Mail Data. © Royal Mail
Copyright & Database Right 2013

Page 33

38

Application Number:

39

10

Contains Ordnance Survey Data. ©
Crown Copyright 2013 EFDC License No:
100018534

8

Def

5
Unauthorised reproduction
infringes
Crown Copyright and may lead to
prosecution or civil proceedings.

24

104

26

RO

33

R
GA

AD

to

ON

CHASE

8

Weir

R'S
YE

7

13

W
SA

15

.9m
25

1

17

16

hts
eig

24

14

13

Path (um)

H
ge
rid
Ab

21

23

19

2

LB

27

APPLICATION No:

EPF/1703/19

SITE ADDRESS:

Abridge Village Hall
39 Ongar Road
Abridge
Lambourne
Essex
RM4 1UU

PARISH:

Lambourne

WARD:

Lambourne

APPLICANT:

Mr John Filby

DESCRIPTION OF
PROPOSAL:

Erection of 4 floodlights for occasional evening use, lights to be
switched off by 8.30 pm

RECOMMENDED
DECISION:

Refuse Permission

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=626093

REASON FOR REFUSAL

1

The introduction of 4 floodlighting columns at an excessive height in this location
results in a highly conspicuous and significant visual intrusion, and would cause
harm to the special character and visual amenity of the area contrary to policies
GB7A, CP2 and LL2 of the Adopted Local Plan and Alterations and policies DM3,
DM4 and DM5 of the Local Plan Submission Version 2017.

2

The floodlighting would result in a significant level of harm to the amenities and
quality of life of surrounding residents by reason of light spill and glare, contrary to
policy DBE9 of the Adopted Local Plan and Alterations and policy DM 9 of the Local
Plan Submission Version 2017.

This application is before this Committee as the application has been ‘called-in’ by Councillor
Rolfe (Pursuant to The Constitution, Part Three: Planning Services – Delegation of Council
functions, Schedule 1, Appendix A.(g)
Description of Site:
The application site is situated within the Metropolitan Green Belt, to the south west of Abridge
Village Hall. It is not a Listed building, nor within a Conservation area. Abridge Village Hall is a
community facility and the open field to the rear of it is used for a variety of activities throughout
the year.

Description of Proposal:

Page 34

Erection of 4 floodlights for occasional evening use, lights to be switched off by 8.30 pm
(Resubmitted application to EPF/0006/19)
Relevant History:
EPF/0145/06
Abridge Village Hall Ongar Road Abridge Lambourne Erection of multi-use
games area on Village Hall field, lower end. (Revised application) FINAL DECISION 25-01-2006
Refuse Permission
EPF/0124/05 ABRIDGE VILLAGE HALL, ONGAR ROAD, ABRIDGE LAMBOURNE Erection of
multi-use games area adjacent to doctor's surgery and village hall. WITHDRAWN 24-01-2005
Withdrawn
EPF/0880/99 ABRIDGE VILLAGE HALL, ONGAR ROAD, ABRIDGE, LAMBOURNE Piers at
entrance to site. FINAL DECISION 11-06-1999 Grant Permission (With Conditions)
EPF/0826/99 ABRIDGE VILLAGE HALL, ONGAR ROAD, ABRIDGE, LAMBOURNE Siting of
air conditioning units. FINAL DECISION 04-06-1999 Grant Permission (With Conditions)
EPF/0887/98 ABRIDGE VILLAGE HALL, ONGAR ROAD, ABRIDGE, LAMBOURNE Single
storey side extension for community use. FINAL DECISION 19-06-1998 Grant Permission (With
Conditions)
DEVELOPMENT PLAN
Section 38(6) Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that planning applications
should be determined in accordance with the development plan unless material considerations
indicate otherwise. The Development Plan currently comprises the Epping Forest District
Council Adopted Local Plan (1998) and Alterations (2006).
The following policies within the current Development Plan are considered to be of relevance to
this application:
CP1
CP2
GB2A
DBE1
DBE4
DBE8
DBE9
LL10
ST4
ST6

Achieving Sustainable Development Objectives
Protecting the Quality of the Rural and Built environment
Development in the Green Belt
Design of New Buildings
Design in the Green Belt
Private Amenity Space
Loss of Amenity
Adequacy of Provision for Landscaping Retention
Road Safety
Vehicle Parking

NATIONAL PLANNING POLICY FRAMEWORK (FEBRUARY 2019)
The revised NPPF is a material consideration in determining planning applications. As with its
predecessor, the presumption in favour of sustainable development remains at the heart of the
NPPF. Paragraph 11 of the NPPF provides that for determining planning applications this
means either;
(a) approving development proposals that accord with an up-to-date development plan
without delay; or

Page 35

(b) where there are no relevant development plan policies, or the policies which are most
important for determining the application are out-of-date, granting permission unless:
i.

ii.

the application of policies in the NPPF that protect areas or assets of
particular importance provides a clear reason for refusing the development
proposed; or
any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably
outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the policies in the NPPF taken
as a whole

The presumption in favour of sustainable development does not change the statutory status of
the development plan as the starting point for decision making, but policies within the
development plan need to be considered and applied in terms of their degree of consistency
with the Framework.
EPPING FOREST DISTRICT LOCAL PLAN SUBMISSION VERSION (2017) (LPSV)
Although the LPSV does not currently form part of the statutory development plan for the district,
on 14 December 2017 the Council resolved that the LPSV be endorsed as a material
consideration to be used in the determination of planning applications.
Paragraph 48 of the NPPF provides that decision-takers may give weight to relevant policies in
emerging plans according to:




The stage of preparation of the emerging plan (the more advanced the preparation, the
greater the weight that may be given);
The extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant policies (the less
significant the unresolved objections, the greater the weight that may be given); and
The degree of consistency of the relevant policies in the emerging plan to the policies in
the NPPF (the closer the policies in the emerging plan to the policies in the NPPF, the
greater the weight that may be given).

The LPSV has been submitted for Independent Examination and hearing sessions were held on
various dates from February 2019 to June 2019. The appointed Inspector has since provided
their initial advice on the LPSV following the Independent Examination and hearing sessions.
This advice was given without prejudice to the Inspector’s final conclusions.
The following policies in the LPSV are considered to be of relevance to the determination of this
application, with the weight afforded by your officers in this particular case indicated:
Policy

Weight afforded

SP1
Presumption in favour of sustainable development
SP2
Spatial Development Strategy
CP2
Protecting the quality of the rural and built environment
DM9
High Quality Design
SP6
Green Belt and District Open Land
SP7
The Natural Environment, Landscape Character and Green and
Blue Infrastructure

Significant
Significant
Significant
Significant
Significant
Significant

T1
T2
DM1
DM2
DM3

Significant
Significant
Significant
Significant
Significant

Sustainable transport choices
Safeguarding of routes and facilities
Habitat protection and improving biodiversity
Epping Forest SAC and the Lee Valley SPA
Landscape Character, Ancient Landscapes and Geodiversity

Page 36

DM4
Green Belt
DM5
Green and Blue Infrastructure
DM10
Housing Design and Quality
DM11
Waste recycling facilities on new development
DM12 Subterranean, basement development and lightwells
DM15
Managing and Reducing Flood Risk
DM16
Sustainable Drainage Systems
DM17
Protecting and enhancing watercourses and flood defences
DM18
On site management of waste water and water supply
DM19
Sustainable water use
DM21
Local environmental impacts, pollution and land contamination

Significant
Significant
Significant
Significant
Significant
Significant
Significant
Significant
Significant
Significant
Significant

Summary of Representations:

LAMBOURNE PARISH COUNCIL- THE COUNCIL HAS NO FURTHER COMMENT ON THIS
APPLICATION.
24 Neighbours Consulted –
Response received: 33 ONGAR ROAD – OBJECT. Proposal is out of character, cause
significant harm to Green Belt, neighbouring amenity, their enjoyment of their garden. Noise
nuisance and light pollution concerns. Highway safety.
55 ONGAR ROAD –NO OBJECTION so long as this does not increase in any way the noise and
fume pollution over neighbouring properties. By noise, I mean loud car stereo systems, village
hall amplified systems in hall or grounds, especially but not restricted to late at night. Fumes
refer to all exhaust pollution from all but not restricted to engines including generators, car, van
and lorry vehicles. The village hall does have other sides to its area which it can use.
Issues and Considerations:
The main issues to be addressed are as follows:




Green Belt
Impact on the quality of the rural environment
Neighbouring amenities

Green Belt:
The National Planning Policy Framework explains that the fundamental aim of Green Belt Policy
is to prevent urban sprawl by keeping land permanently open and that the essential
characteristics of Green Belts are their openness. One of the purposes of including land within
the Green Belt is to safeguard the countryside from encroachment. The Framework explains that
the construction of new buildings as inappropriate development within the Green Belt apart from
some exceptions. Policy GB2A of the Epping Forest Adopted Local Plan is broadly in
accordance with these objectives. Policy CP2 seeks to protect the quality of the rural and built
environment.
It is accepted that the physical structures of the floodlighting poles themselves have only a
relatively limited impact on openness and could be regarded as an appropriate facility for
outdoor recreation and therefore not inappropriate development in Green Belt terms. Moreover,
the use of the Green Belt for outdoor recreation is permitted within the National Planning Policy
Framework 2019.
Impact on the quality of the rural environment

Page 37

Policy CP2 seeks to protect the quality of the rural and built environment, and GB7A seeks to
protect the Green Belt from conspicuous development harmful to the rural character or visual
amenity of the Green Belt.
The addition of Flood lighting leads significant visual harm of the rural environment. Whilst the
erection of 4 no. poles itself has little impact on the openness and character of the area, light
spillage from floodlights can be far reaching and is not an expected sight within rural
environments. Policy LL2 of the adopted local plan suggests that development ‘respect the
character of the landscape’; it is not consider that flood lighting respects either the character of
the open countryside of Abridge, nor can it be considered that the development respects the
character of the site.
It is considered that in the winter months, when the lights would be operational, the operation of
the lights to 8.30pm will have a significantly adverse impact on the nature and quality of the night
time rural environment in this relatively remote and dark locality and that the lighting will be
visually intrusive, to an extent that can in no way be justified even for use in connection with
footballing and other sporting activities for the community/public use.
The development is therefore contrary to policies GB7A, CP2 and LL2 of the Adopted Local
Plan and Alterations and policies DM3, DM4 and DM5 of the Local Plan Submission Version
2017.

Neighbouring amenities
Whilst the lighting is located some 90m away from neighbouring properties, Officers site visit
and photos from neighbouring properties does show significant light spillage and glare from the
floodlighting. Lighting from the development reaches into the garden areas and habitable room
windows of those residing along 19- 36 Ongar Road and does cause excessive harm to
neighbouring amenity contrary to policy DBE9 of the Adopted Local Plan and Alterations and
policy DM 9 of the Local Plan Submission Version 2017.

Highway Safety
No objections have been raised by the County Highway Authority on matters of Highway Safety.
Other Matters
The case officer has suggested to the applicants to situate the lights so they face downwards in
addition to suggested the placement of cowls on top of the lights to reduce light glare. This has
not been taken up. Moreover, a lighting impact assessment has not been provided in support of
the application to suggest the lights would be acceptable in terms of impact on neighbouring
amenity. As such, the proposal as it stands is unacceptable.
Conclusion:
It is accepted that the flood lighting itself would not be deemed as inappropriate development
within the Green Belt it would be used in connection with outdoor recreation in line with
Government Green Belt policy as set out in the NPPF 2019. However, the floodlights when in
operation would cause significant harm to the character of the rural environment. This is due to
the light glare and spillage that would arise from the development as it currently stands which
would result in an ‘urbanising effect’ of the immediate locality which is semi-rural in nature and
form. In addition, the proposed floodlights would result in increased glare and light pollution
which would cause causing significant harm to neighbouring amenity of surrounding residents in

Page 38

terms of its nuisance value. Overall, the development as it stands in its current form would have
an unacceptable impact on the character of the Green Belt and the rural environment, as well
causing a negative impact on the quality of life enjoyed by inhabitants of surrounding dwellings
contrary to the NPPF 2019, as well the adopted policies of the Local Plan and Submission
Version of the Local Plan 2017. The application is therefore recommended for refusal.
Planning Enforcement will be notified of the decision to refuse planning permission

Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest:
Planning Application Case Officer: Sukhdeep Jhooti
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564 298
or if no direct contact can be made please email:
contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk

Page 39

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 12

Epping Forest District Council

Potter's Cottage

2

1

EFDC
3

96.3m
rm
Fa s
d
Ol tage
t
Co

Foster Street

Pond
2

TCB

1

Amber
Cottage
96.6m

ilee
Jub

El Sub Sta

2

nris
Ke

1
ET
RE
ST

in
Dra

EFDC
ys
mle
Bra

ER
ST
FO

s
low
Wil
The

in
Dra

ain
Dr

in
Dra

Unauthorised reproduction infringes
Crown Copyright and may lead to
prosecution or civil proceedings.

Application Number:

EPF/0803/19

Site Name:

Contains Ordnance Survey Data. ©
Crown Copyright 2013 EFDC License No:
100018534

Scale of Plot:

Foster Street Farm Foster Street
Hastingwood CM17 9HS
1:1250

Contains Royal Mail Data. © Royal Mail
Copyright & Database Right 2013

Page 41

den
rth
No

Pond

F arm

h
Wis
y's
Ma

F oster Street

APPLICATION No:

EPF/0803/19

SITE ADDRESS:

Foster Street Farm
Foster Street
Hastingwood
Essex
CM17 9HS

PARISH:

North Weald Bassett

WARD:

Hastingwood, Matching and Sheering Village

APPLICANT:

Mr G Darlington

DESCRIPTION OF
PROPOSAL:

Proposed erection of 10 x detached houses, with new vehicular
access and a new road, provision of parking with hard and soft
landscaping (Ref: EPF/2516/14)

RECOMMENDED
DECISION:

Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=622254

CONDITIONS
1

The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration
of three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2

The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with
the approved drawings numbers:
a) Drawing no. 2356.2A (Proposed Site Plan ) Dated Dec 2018
b) Drawing no. 3754/1A (Site Location Plan) Dated 21/02/2019
c) Drawing no. SK01REV G (Access Arrangement and Visibility Splay) Dated
27/06/2019.
d) Drawing no.2356.7,
e) Drawing no. 2356.6
f) Drawing no.. 2356.4
g) Drawing no. 2356.5
h) Drawing no. 2356.3
i) Drawing no. 2356.2
j) Drawing no. SK02REVA
k) Drawing no. 2356.8
f) Flood Risk Assessment Report.
Landscaping Tree report

3

Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed development shall
match those submitted with the application, unless otherwise agreed in writing by
the Local Planning Authority.

4

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General
Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015, as amended, (or any other order
revoking, further amending or re-enacting that Order) no development generally
permitted by virtue of Class A ,B and E of Part 1 of Schedule 2 to the Order,

Page 42

shall be undertaken without the prior written permission of the Local Planning
Authority.
5

If any tree, shrub or hedge shown to be retained in the submitted Arboricultural
reports is removed, uprooted or destroyed, dies, or becomes severely damaged
or diseased during development activities or within 3 years of the completion of
the development, another tree, shrub or hedge of the same size and species
shall be planted within 3 months at the same place, unless the Local Planning
Authority gives its written consent to any variation. If within a period of five years
from the date of planting any replacement tree, shrub or hedge is removed,
uprooted or destroyed, or dies or becomes seriously damaged or defective
another tree, shrub or hedge of the same species and size as that originally
planted shall, within 3 months, be planted at the same place.

6

No preliminary ground works shall take place until driveway details have been
submitted to the Local Planning Authority and approved in writing. These shall
consist of an above ground, no dig construction with a porous finish and included
an Arboricultural supervision timetable. The development shall be carried out
only in accordance with the approved documents unless the Local Planning
Authority gives its written consent to any variation.

7

Prior to first occupation of the development the developer shall implement the
access arrangements and visibility splays, as shown in principle on EAS drawing
no SK01 Rev G. The visibility splays shall have no obstruction above 600mm in
height within them.

8

Prior to first occupation of the development, the Developer shall be responsible
for the provision and implementation, per dwelling, of a Residential Travel
Information Pack for sustainable transport. These are to be provided at no cost
to the occupier

9

There shall be no discharge of private surface water onto the Highway

10

No construction works above ground level shall take place until documentary
and photographic details of the types and colours of the external finishes have
been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing. The
development shall be implemented in accordance with such approved details.

11

No development shall take place until details of surface water disposal have
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
development shall be implemented in accordance with such agreed details.

12

The development shall be carried out in accordance with the flood risk
assessment (Stomor Civil Engineering Consultants, Ref ST2331/FRA-1408Foster Street Revision 0, August 2014) and drainage strategy submitted with the
application, unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority.

13

No development shall take place until wheel washing or other cleaning facilities
for vehicles leaving the site during construction works have been installed in
accordance with details which shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. The approved installed cleaning facilities shall be used
to clean vehicles immediately before leaving the site.
Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town & Country Planning (General
Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or of any equivalent provision in
any Statutory Instrument revoking or re-enacting that Order), the garages hereby
approved shall be retained so that it is capable of allowing the parking of cars

14

Page 43

together with any ancillary storage in connection with the residential use of the
site, and shall at no time be converted into a room or used for any other purpose.
15

The recommendations within the Phase 1 Habitat Survey dated April 2014,
submitted by DF Clark Bionomique Ltd, as stated within section 1, Summary,
items i - ix concerning birds, great crested newts, bats and recommendations for
future lighting and landscaping, shall be followed.

16

No development shall take place, including site clearance or other preparatory
work, until full details of both hard and soft landscape works (including tree
planting) and implementation programme (linked to the development schedule)
have been submitted to an approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
These works shall be carried out as approved. The hard landscaping details
shall include, as appropriate, and in addition to details of existing features to be
retained: proposed finished levels or contours; means of enclosure; car parking
layouts; other minor artefacts and structures, including signs and lighting and
functional services above and below ground. The details of soft landscape works
shall include plans for planting or establishment by any means and full written
specifications and schedules of plants, including species, plant sizes and
proposed numbers /densities where appropriate. If within a period of five years
from the date of the planting or establishment of any tree, or shrub or plant, that
tree, shrub, or plant or any replacement is removed, uprooted or destroyed or
dies or becomes seriously damaged or defective another tree or shrub, or plant
of the same species and size as that originally planted shall be planted at the
same place, unless the Local Planning Authority gives its written consent to any
variation.

17

Prior to the commencement of development, including any ground works or
demolition, details of a Construction Method Statement shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The Statement shall provide
for the following clear of the highway:
- safe access into the site
- the parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors
- loading and unloading of plant and materials
- storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development
- wheel and underbody washing facilities
The approved Statement shall be adhered to throughout the construction period.

18

Prior to first occupation of the development the developer shall implement and
retain in perpetuity the access arrangements for the proposed development, as
shown in principle on drawing nos.2356.2 A, and SK01/REV G to include but not
limited to:
- 2.4m x 120m visibility splays.

19

All turning heads required for refuse and fire tender use shall comply with the
dimensions within the Essex Design Guide for a Size 3 Turning Head.

20

All turning heads required for refuse and fire tender use shall comply with the
dimensions within the Essex Design Guide for a Size 3 Turning Head.

21

The parking area shown on the approved plan shall be provided prior to the first
occupation of the development and shall be retained free of obstruction for the
parking of residents and visitor’s vehicles.

Page 44

22

The parking area shown on the approved plan shall be provided prior to the first
occupation of the development and shall be retained free of obstruction for the
parking of residents and visitors vehicles.

23

No development shall take place until a Phase 1 Land Contamination
investigation has been carried out. A protocol for the investigation shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before
commencement of the Phase 1 investigation. The completed Phase 1 report
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority
prior to the commencement of any necessary Phase 2 investigation. The report
shall assess potential risks to present and proposed humans, property including
buildings, crops, livestock, pets, woodland and service lines and pipes, adjoining
land, groundwaters and surface waters, ecological systems, archaeological sites
and ancient monuments and the investigation must be conducted in accordance
with DEFRA and the Environment Agency's "Model Procedures for the
Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11", or any subsequent version or
additional regulatory guidance.
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning
Authority before the submission of details pursuant to the Phase 2 site
investigation condition that follows]

24

Should the Phase 1 Land Contamination preliminary risk assessment carried out
under the above condition identify the presence of potentially unacceptable risks,
no development shall take place until a Phase 2 site investigation has been
carried out. A protocol for the investigation shall be submitted to and approved
by the Local Planning Authority before commencement of the Phase 2
investigation. The completed Phase 2 investigation report, together with any
necessary outline remediation options, shall be submitted to and approved by
the Local Planning Authority prior to any redevelopment or remediation works
being carried out. The report shall assess potential risks to present and
proposed humans, property including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, woodland
and service lines and pipes, adjoining land, groundwaters and surface waters,
ecological systems, archaeological sites and ancient monuments and the
investigation must be conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the
Environment Agency's "Model Procedures for the Management of Land
Contamination, CLR 11", or any subsequent version or additional regulatory
guidance.
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning
Authority before the submission of details pursuant to the remediation scheme
condition that follows]

25

Should Land Contamination Remediation Works be identified as necessary
under the above condition, no development shall take place until a detailed
remediation scheme to bring the site to a condition suitable for the intended use
has been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The
development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved remediation
scheme unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
remediation scheme must include all works to be undertaken, proposed
remediation objectives and remediation criteria, timetable of works and site
management procedures and any necessary long term maintenance and
monitoring programme. The scheme must ensure that the site will not qualify as
contaminated land under Part 2A of the Environmental Protection Act 1990 or
any subsequent version, in relation to the intended use of the land after
remediation.
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning
Authority before the submission of details pursuant to the verification report

Page 45

condition that follows]
26

Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation
scheme and prior to the first use or occupation of the development, a verification
report that demonstrates the effectiveness of the remediation carried out must be
produced together with any necessary monitoring and maintenance programme
and copies of any waste transfer notes relating to exported and imported soils
shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval. The approved
monitoring and maintenance programme shall be implemented.

27

In the event that any evidence of potential contamination is found at any time
when carrying out the approved development that was not previously identified in
the approved Phase 2 report, it must be reported in writing immediately to the
Local Planning Authority. An investigation and risk assessment must be
undertaken in accordance with a methodology previously approved by the Local
Planning Authority. Following completion of measures identified in the approved
remediation scheme, a verification report must be prepared, which is subject to
the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority in accordance with the
immediately above condition.

28

All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle
movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises,
shall only take place between the hours of 07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and
08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and
Public/Bank Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning
Authority.

Page 46

This application is before this Committee since it is an application for residential development
consisting of 10 dwellings or more (unless approval of reserved matters only) and is
recommended for approval, is contrary to an objection from a local council which is material to
the planning merits of the proposal and since it is for a type of development that cannot be
determined by Officers if more than two objections material to the planning merits of the
proposal to be approved are received (Pursuant to The Constitution, Part Three: Planning
Services – Delegation of Council functions, Schedule 1, Appendix A.(d), (f) and (g).
Description of Site:
The application site comprises an area of about 0.6ha and is located on the northern side of
Foster Street. It is roughly rectangular in shape with a relatively narrow road frontage of about
68m and a depth of about 105-145m. A large, former agricultural shed occupies the central
part of the site. Some smaller storage sheds and structures lie towards the site’s southern end.
The remainder of the site towards the north and south is laid out as hardstanding.
The site is part of a small enclave of development consisting of a mix of commercial sites
(including the application site, the C.J. Pryor Ltd site on the southern side of Foster Street, and
Fosters Croft to the south of the application site) a public house (the Horn and Horseshoes,
which is somewhat detached from the hamlet) and approximately 50 residential dwellings
(some of which are detached from the centre of the Hamlet). The site is currently owned by
C.J. Pryor Ltd, although at the time of the Officer site visit, it appeared to be occupied by AMA
Scaffolding. Nonetheless the site constitutes previously developed land.
Immediately adjacent to the site to the east are No’s. 1 and 2 Old Farm Cottages (No. 1 of
which adjoins the site). To the west and north of the site is open agricultural land and to the
south (on the opposite side of Foster Street) are residential properties.
The site benefits from an existing single vehicular access from Foster Street and is bound
along the site frontage by low level fencing. The remainder of the boundaries are intermittently
planted with vegetation and trees which offers some screening to the site.
The site lies within the Metropolitan Green Belt.
Description of Proposal:
Consent is being sought for the redevelopment of the site for the erection of 10 x detached
houses, with new vehicular access and a new road, provision of associated car parking,
amenity spaces with hard and soft landscaping (Ref: EPF/2516/14).
The development would comprise 8 x 3 bedroom houses and 2 x 4 bedroom houses. The 3
bed houses each have a GIA of 92.8m². They have a shallow plan form, with a full height offset
gable on the front elevation and two smaller gables either side on the rear elevation. The 4 bed
houses have a GIA of 125.4m². Their main plan form is shallow with larger full height gables to
the front and rear.
The proposed dwellings would be two storeys in height (the original submitted plans for up to
three storey dwellings has been amended to lower the height of the buildings) and would
consist of detached house dwelling fronting onto Foster Street with a linear development.
The dwellings are generally smaller than those previously approved and considered by the
applicant to be more suited to the expected market demand in this area. A greater amount of
the development in the revised scheme is concentrated closer to the site frontage, and the
northernmost dwelling (unit 5) is not as large as that in the approved scheme and the plot is
more open.
The access road is a 6m wide shared surface with a turning head. A total of 26

Page 47

parking spaces are proposed with 2 spaces per dwelling and 6 visitor bays. The site access
would be relocated, which was approved in the previous planning permission to allow for better
visibility splays.
Relevant History:
Planning permission was granted in 5th August 2015 for the construction of 9 dwellings on this
site (EPF/2516/14). Subsequently three conditions have been approved (EPF/0967/18,
EPF/1327/18 and EPF/1649/18) enabling a start to be made on the development.
Prior to this, CLD/EPF/2029/04 – Application for certificate of lawfulness for the existing use of
land as a depot for the maintenance and repair of plant and machinery – was deemed lawful
01/04/05.
Policies Applied:
The following policies within the current Development Plan are considered to be of relevance
to this application:
Adopted Local Plan:
CP1 - Achieving sustainable development objectives
CP2 - Protecting the quality of the rural and built environment
CP3 - New development
CP6 - Achieving sustainable urban development objectives
CP8 - Sustainable economic development
CP9 - Sustainable transport
GB2A - Development in the Green Belt
GB7A - Conspicuous development
H2A - Previously developed land
H3A - Housing density
H4A - Dwelling mix
NC4 - Protection of established habitat
DBE1 - Design of new buildings
DBE2 - Effect on neighbouring properties
DBE4 - Design in the Green Belt
DBE8 - Private amenity space
DBE9 - Loss of amenity
DM2 - Epping Forest SAC and the Lee Valley SPA
DM10 - Housing Design and Quality
DM22 - Air Quality
LL2 - Inappropriate rural development
LL10 - Adequacy of the provision of landscape retention
LL11 - Landscaping scheme
ST1 - Location of development
ST2 - Accessibility of development
ST4 - Road safety
ST6 - Vehicle parking
RP3 - Water quality
RP4 - Contaminated land
RP5A - Adverse environmental impacts
U3A - Catchment effects
The above policies form part of the Council’s Saved Local Plan and Alterations 2008. Following
the publication of the NPPF 2019, policies from this plan are to be afforded due weight where

Page 48

they are consistent with the Framework. The above policies are broadly consistent with the
NPPF and therefore are afforded significant weight.

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF )2019:
The revised NPPF is a material consideration in determining planning applications. As with its
predecessor, the presumption in favour of sustainable development remains at the heart of the
NPPF. Paragraph 11 of the NPPF provides that for determining planning applications this
means either;
(a) approving development proposals that accord with an up-to-date development plan
without delay; or
(b) where there are no relevant development plan policies, or the policies which are
most important for determining the application are out-of-date, granting permission
unless:
i.

ii.

the application of policies in the NPPF that protect areas or assets of
particular importance provides a clear reason for refusing the development
proposed; or
any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably
outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the policies in the NPPF
taken as a whole

The presumption in favour of sustainable development does not change the statutory status of
the development plan as the starting point for decision making, but policies within the
development plan need to be considered and applied in terms of their degree of consistency
with the Framework.
In addition to paragraph 11, the following paragraphs of the NPPF are considered to be of
relevance to this application: Paragraphs 124 – 132, 133 – 147, 213.
Epping Forest District Local Plan (Submission Version) 2017
On 14 December 2017, full Council resolved that the Epping Forest Local Plan Submission
Version 2017 (“LPSV”) be endorsed as a material consideration to be used in the
determination of planning applications and be given appropriate weight in accordance with
paragraph 148 of the NPPF.
Paragraph 148 of the NPPF provides that decision-takers may give weight to relevant policies
in emerging plans according to:




The stage of preparation of the emerging plan (the more advanced the preparation, the
greater the weight that may be given);
The extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant policies (the less
significant the unresolved objections, the greater the weight that may be given); and
The degree of consistency of the relevant policies in the emerging plan to the policies in
the NPPF (the closer the policies in the emerging plan to the policies in the NPPF, the
greater the weight that may be given).

Page 49

The LPSV has been submitted for Independent Examination and hearing sessions were held
on various dates from February 2019 to June 2019. The appointed Inspector provided advice
to the Council on 6 August 2019; given without prejudice to the Inspector’s final conclusions.
The following policies in the LPSV are considered to be of relevance to the determination of
this application, with the weight afforded by your officers in this particular case indicated:
Policy

Weight afforded

SP1 – Presumption in favour of sustainable development

Significant

DM4 – Green Belt

Significant

DM9 – High quality design

Significant

DM10 – Housing design and quality
DM22 - Air Quality
E1 – Employment Sites

Significant
Significant
Significant

Consultation Carried Out and Summary of Representations Received:
144 neighbouring properties were consulted and a Site Notice was displayed on 06/06/19. One
representation received.
1 OLD FARM COTTAGE, FOSTER STREET – Object, will restrict vision along the road but
with a slight re-alignment with proposed house no.9, previous accidents here that damaged my
property, although a speed limit was put in. With more thought and a re-alignment of house
no.9, then issue could be addressed.
NORTH WEALD PARISH COUNCIL – NO OBJECTION to this application.
THE COUNTY HIGHWAYS ENGINEER was consulted they had concerns for the first
proposed access which has now been amended to the previously approved access for 9
houses. The Highway Engineer commented stating that: The Highway Authority has
considered the above application, visited the site and thoroughly assessed the submitted
transport information and has concluded that the proposal does accord with current policy and
safety criteria. Consequently the Highway Authority has concluded that the proposal will not be
detrimental to highway safety or capacity at this location or on the wider highway network.
Further to the receipt of amended plans, from a highway and transportation perspective the
impact of the proposal is acceptable to the Highway Authority subject to the following
measures:
1. Prior to first occupation of the development the developer shall implement the access
arrangements and visibility splays, as shown in principle on EAS drawing no SK01 Rev
G. The visibility splays shall have no obstruction above 600mm in height within them.

Page 50

2. Prior to first occupation of the development, the Developer shall be responsible for the
provision and implementation, per dwelling, of a Residential Travel Information Pack for
sustainable transport. These are to be provided at no cost to the occupier
3. There shall be no discharge of private surface water onto the Highway

THE ENGINEERING, DRAINAGE AND WATER TEAM were consulted and the following
comments was provided the following comments:
The applicant has provided a flood risk assessment with the application and we agree with the
findings in principal. Therefore, please add a condition requiring that the development be
carried out in accordance with the flood risk assessment (SuDS Strategy Report,
Revision A, Ref: 1956/2019, March 2019) and drainage strategy submitted with the
application unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority. No
objection to planning application in principle, subject to the approval/implementation of the
requirements set out above by this team.
TREES AND Landscape were consulted no objection with recommended conditions.

Issues and Considerations:
Principle of Development:
The Principle of development has already been established under the previous application
EPF/2516/14, which was approved by Committee for the redevelopment of this site for 9
dwelling houses. This development has discharged planning conditions and as such
represents a fall-back position.
Given the previous approval, and that the development does not propose a material difference
in scale and extent there would not be a greater impact on the openness of the Green Belt
than the existing development and as such the proposal would not be inappropriate
development in the Green Belt.
The development is therefore acceptable in principle
Green Belt
The application site is located within the Metropolitan Green Belt and is used as a depot for the
maintenance and repair of plant and machinery (although at the time of the Officer’s site visit it
appeared to be occupied by a company called AMA Scaffolding).
The National Planning Policy Framework (the Framework) identifies that the erection of
buildings within the Green Belt constitutes inappropriate development with a number of
exceptions, which includes:


limited infilling or the partial or complete redevelopment of previously developed sites
(brownfield land), whether redundant or in continuing use (excluding temporary
buildings), which would not have a greater impact on the openness of the Green Belt
and the purpose of including land within it than the existing development.

Paragraph 80 of the Framework sets out the five purposes of the Green Belt as follows:
1. To check the unrestricted sprawl of large built-up areas;

Page 51

2.
3.
4.
5.

To prevent neighbouring towns merging into one another;
To assist in safeguarding the countryside from encroachment;
To preserve the setting and special character of historic towns; and
To assist in urban regeneration, by encouraging the recycling of derelict and other
urban land.

The definition of previously developed land is provided within Annex 2 of the Framework and
reads:
Previously developed land: Land which is or was occupied by a permanent structure,
including the curtilage of the developed land (although it should not be assumed that the
whole of the curtilage should be developed) and any associated fixed surface
infrastructure. This excludes: land that is or has been occupied by agricultural or
forestry buildings; land that has been developed for minerals extraction or waste
disposal by landfill purposes where provision for restoration has been made through
development control procedures; land in built-up areas such as private residential
gardens, parks, recreational grounds and allotments; and land that was previouslydeveloped but where the remains of the permanent structure or fixed surface structure
have blended into the landscape in the process of time.
Given the lawful use of the site and presence of buildings and hardstanding the application site
would constitute previously developed (brownfield) land. Along with the previous planning
permission, the proposal will not represent inappropriate development in the Green Belt, so
long as it “would not have a greater impact on the openness of the Green Belt and the
purposes of including land within it than the existing development”.
‘Impact on the Green Belt’ would cover many factors, including increased activity and type of
use, however one of the key considerations is with regards to the level of built development on
a site. The existing permanent buildings on the site have a total footprint of 1308.5m2 and are a
mix of single storey and (equivalent) one-and-a-half storey buildings. The combined footprint of
all proposed dwellings and detached garage buildings would total some 843.5m2. Although the
proposed dwellings would be two storeys in height, and therefore would be slightly more
visually prominent than the existing low structures on site, the 35% reduction in built form on
the site and removal of the existing large former barn would counter any additional visual
impact from the increased height.
The proposed redevelopment of the site would also involve the removal of large areas of
hardstanding and open storage and the introduction of additional landscaping. As such it is
considered that the proposed redevelopment of this previously developed site for ten dwellings
would not result in any additional visual harm to the open character of the Green Belt and
surrounding countryside.

Sustainable Location:
The application site is located in a small rural Hamlet that does not benefit from any significant
public transport links or local facilities (with the exception of a public house). As such all trips to
and from the site would be by way of private vehicles.
One of the key principles of Planning, as laid out within the National Planning Policy
Framework, is that decision-makers should “actively manage patterns of growth to make the
fullest possible use of public transport, walking and cycling, and focus significant development
in location which are or can be made sustainable”. Adopted Local Plan policies CP1, CP3,
CP6, CP9 and ST1 also promote developments that utilise sustainable forms of transport and
reduce the need to commute.

Page 52

When viewed as an isolated site, the level of vehicle movements from the proposed residential
development would be similar to the expected levels of commercial traffic using the lawful site.
Whilst the proposal would result in an unsustainable form of development not well served by
local facilities or public transport it is considered that the small scale of the development would
ensure that any harm would be limited and the increase in the level of residential vehicle
commuting would be offset by the commercial vehicle movements removed from this site.
Therefore it is considered on balance that the redevelopment of this small site for a low density
housing development would not be contrary to the Government guidance or Local Plan policies
regarding sustainability.
Highways:
The application site has an existing use that generates commercial traffic. The levels of
residential traffic that would result from the proposed development would be broadly similar
and therefore would not have any further detrimental impact on the highway in terms of safety,
efficiency and capacity than the existing use.
The application proposes to relocate the access further to the west of the site frontage in order
to optimise visibility splays. The access for the proposal has been amended from that originally
submitted and provides appropriate visibility and geometry to serve the development and
overcome the comments of the neighbour. Consequently the Highway Authority has
concluded that the proposal will not be detrimental to highway safety or capacity at this location
or on the wider highway network, because the proposal would provide improved visibility and
geometry of the access in order to serve the development.
The current adopted parking standards (Essex Vehicle Park Standards) requires a minimum 2
car parking spaces per 2+ bed dwelling and 0.25 visitor spaces per dwelling, resulting in a
requirement of 23 spaces. Each dwelling would be provided with a bike store.
Visual Impact:
The application site currently contains a number of former agricultural (now commercial)
buildings and open storage and is currently a visually unappealing site. Whilst the introduction
of a linear row of dwellings to the rear of the site would result in some visual encroachment in
this rural area the proposal would reduce the level of built form on the site and would allow for
additional landscaping to assist in softening and screening the site.
The (revised scheme) proposes 10 dwellings would be no higher than two storeys in height
and would be fairly traditional in terms of the scale and design and therefore are not
considered to be detrimental to the overall appearance of the area. There is adequate private
amenity space provided for each of the dwellings and the houses would be adequately spaced
and of a relatively low density so as to retain the rural character of this area.
Amenity Impact:
It is accepted that the application site is not an ideal location for commercial development and
the removal of this commercial site would be of some benefit to surrounding neighbours. The
introduction of 10 residential dwelling houses would not cause further disturbance and there
would remain a sizeable gap between proposed unit 10 and the flank wall of the nearest house,
1 Old Farm Cottage immediately to the east of the site.
The proposed dwellings in this part of the site (units 6-10) have no first-floor windows in their
flank elevations that would look towards the cottage. The rear of unit 6 would have a limited,
angled view towards the northern end part of the garden of 1 Old Farm Cottage, which would
be significantly less of an issue than the more direct views towards the garden from units 5, 6 &
7 in the approved fall-back scheme. The proposed development which would face towards the

Page 53

neighbouring property to the west, the proposed houses would be a minimum of 2.m and
maximum of 4m from the shared boundary with No.1 Old Farm Cottage side and rear gardens.
Furthermore, any subsequent landscaping scheme proposed for the site (by way of condition)
can require the provision of additional landscaping and screening along the eastern boundary
to mitigate any possible loss of privacy and overlooking as a result of the proposed
development.
To the west only one proposed dwelling could be said to face towards the nearest
dwellings, but this is a pair of cottages about 60m away – too far for overlooking or loss of
privacy to be a relevant issue.
Overall therefore it is considered that the proposed revised development would result in an
improvement with less impact to the amenities of nearby residents compared with the
previously approved scheme ref EPF/2516/14.
Loss of employment:
The proposed redevelopment of this site would involve the loss of a commercial employment
site.The principle of redevelopment of this site for housing has already been established under
the previous permission (EPF/2516/14) which has been lawfully implemented. While this is a
new application, it is an amendment to the previous scheme, which represents a fall-back
position. The loss of commercial, having regard to Policy E1 of the Local Plan cannot therefore
be a reasonable position to adopt with this application.
Affordable housing:
The National Planning Practice Guidance states that “contributions for affordable housing and
tariff style planning obligations… should not be sought from developments of 10-units or less,
and which would have a maximum combined gross floorspace of no more than 1000m2 (gross
internal area)”. Since the application proposes not to be more than ten residential
developments and would have a total gross a combined gross floorspace of 993.2m²internal
floor area, it is less than 1000m2 and therefore no affordable housing provision can be sought
for this proposal.
Ecological impacts:
Habitat surveys were undertaken and submitted regarding the proposed development. Subject
to the undertaking of the mitigation and recommendations contained within these documents it
is considered that there would be no detrimental impact on existing habitats in or around the
site.

Landscaping:
Submitted tree and landscaping reports demonstrate that there will be no unacceptable loss of
important vegetation.
Flooding:
A Flood Risk Assessment was submitted with this application, which is considered to be
acceptable. Similar details are included as part of this application alongside a revised flood risk
assessment. It is therefore considered that no further drainage conditions will be necessary.
However additional details are required with regards to surface water drainage, which can be
adequately dealt with by condition.

Page 54

Land Contamination:
A revised phase 1 land contamination report is submitted with this application which is
consistent with that submitted under planning permission EPF/2516/14. A revised phase 2
report is also submitted which is consistent with that permission.
Phase 1 report would need to be revised prior to the commencement of work, and additional
Phase 2 and Remediation Reports would need to be submitted as required, but this matter can
be dealt with by conditions.
Waste:
All proposed properties would require a 180-litre waste container, a 180 litre food and garden
waste container and a 55 litre glass container. The properties would also need space to store
recycling sacks. The proposed layout of the development would allow for this.
The roadways onto the development must be of sufficient structure to withstand the weight of a
32-tonne waste collection vehicle. The widths of the roadways must be adequate so that the
collection vehicle can manoeuvre safely without obstruction. The waste operatives should not
have to pull waste container more than 25 metres from the property to the collection vehicle.
Epping Forest Special Area of Conservation (SAC)
As set out in Policy DM 2 and DM 22 of the emerging Local Plan, issues have been identified
with respect to the effect of development on the integrity of the Epping Forest Special Area of
Conservation (SAC) as a result of increased visitor pressure arising from new residential
development, and from local air quality issues within and adjacent to the SAC. The site though
lies outside of the 3km zone measured from the edge of the SAC and therefore a contribution
to managing and monitoring of visitor pressure is not required. However, a section 106
agreement is required to help fund the monitoring of the air quality impact on the Forest SAC,
but an interim strategy is yet to be drawn up while Natural England continues to object to the
Local Plan Submission Version.
Unlike policy DM2 this policy applies to development of all types and all locations as they all
have the potential to result in increased traffic generation which would put pressure on the
roads through the Epping Forest.
The Epping Forest covers a large area of land within the District and much of the Forest is
designated as a Special Area of Conservation (SAC). Biodiversity features within, or
associated with, these designations enjoy the highest level of protection under UK and EU Law
and UK planning policy. Epping Forest SAC is designated a ‘European Site’ and as the
Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 as amended (“the Habitats
Regulations”) requires that the Council, as the competent authority, must before deciding to
grant planning permission make an appropriate assessment of the implications of the
development for the SAC in view of the SAC’s nature conservation objectives where it is likely
that the development is likely to have a significant effect on the SAC (either alone or in
combination with other development) and where the development is not directly connected with
or necessary to the management of the SAC. This appropriate assessment is known as a
Habitats Regulation Assessment (HRA).
Under the Habitats Regulations, the Council may, if it considers that any adverse effects of the
development on the integrity of the SAC would be avoided if the planning permission were
subject to conditions or limitations, grant planning permission, subject to those conditions or
limitations. The approach may vary depending on the scale and nature of the proposal.
This application (10 new dwelling houses) would result in a net increase in vehicle movements
and therefore a likely significant effect on air quality as it relates to the Epping Forest SAC

Page 55

cannot be screened out at this point in time. It is also likely to lead to increased visitor
pressure on the SAC given its location within the 6.2km Zone of Influence.
The Council is currently awaiting the views of Natural England on the findings of an updated
HRA (January 2019), which has been provided to support the Examination of the Council’s
submitted Local Plan. This updated HRA has assessed the likely significant effect of
development over the period of the Local Plan (including windfalls) in combination with other
plans and projects. Until such time as Natural England confirms that it is satisfied with the
findings of the updated HRA the Council cannot grant planning permission on any
planning applications which would result in a net additional increase in vehicle movements
within the District.
Natural England has, however, advised that it is satisfied with the approach set out in the
Council’s ‘Interim Approach to Managing Recreational Pressure on the Epping Forest Special
Area of Conservation’ (adopted by the Council on 18 October 2018 as a material consideration
in the determination of planning applications) with respect to mitigating the likely significant
effects of residential development within the current Zone of Influence of 6.2km.
The applicant has submitted a transport assessment which states that the existing use of the
site generates up to 86 vehicle movements per day from car/van and HGV movements (HGV
amounts to 61 movements per day). The estimated movements from 10 houses are 43 vehicle
movements per day. As such there would be a clear net reduction in traffic generation from the
proposed development such as to not impact on air quality. The proposal would not therefore
require mitigation through a section 106 agreement.
Conclusion:
The proposed revised redevelopment scheme for 10 dwellings of this previously developed
(brownfield land ) site would not result in any greater harm to the openness of the Green Belt
and would not cause any significantly greater impact on the character and appearance of this
rural area. The amount of resulting vehicle movements would be broadly similar to the
expected commercial vehicle movements of the existing site and the amended relocation of the
access to the previously approved location would improve the sightlines of the site and overall
highway safety of this stretch of Foster Street which is considered acceptable by the County
Authority Highways Engineer.
Whilst the provision of housing on this site would introduce some additional overlooking to the
immediately neighbouring dwelling the distances involved and ability to insist on additional
landscaping along the eastern boundary would ensure that any loss of amenity would not be
excessive.
The proposed development would provide adequate off-street vehicle parking and private
amenity space to serve future occupants and, whilst not situated within a sustainable location,
the small scale of the proposal and off-setting of the existing commercial use on the site would
ensure that the development would be sufficient in terms of sustainability. As such the proposal
complies with the National Planning Policy Framework 2019 and the relevant Local Plan
Policies and is recommended for approval subject to planning conditions, a S106 Legal
Agreement. This permission is therefore a viable fallback position and forms part of the
Council’s existing land supply.
The revised proposal complies with relevant planning policy and it is recommended that
planning permission be granted subject to conditions and subject to completion of a S106
Legal Agreement to secure appropriate financial contributions for the management and
monitoring of visitors to the Epping Forest Special Area of Conservation and a contribution
towards measures to mitigate air quality as set out in this report.
Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest:

Page 56

Planning Application Case Officer: Francis Saayeng
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564161
or if no direct contact can be made please email:
contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk

Page 57

This page is intentionally left blank

